Taylor County Accelerated School Faculty & Staff 2020-2021

Name	Grade	Title/Position	Room	Phone EXT.
	Area	200		
Edward L. Harvey Sr	6 th -12 th	Dean of Students/Ed Leadership	003	101
Sandra O'Quinn		Admin Assistant	Main Office/004	103
Daryl Upshaw		SRO	Main Office/004A	105
Cherie Rowell	6 th -12 th			
Robin Collins	6 th -12 th	Language Arts /Science		
Ruben Lewis	6 th -12 th	Math/Social Studies		
Samantha Sparrow	6 th -8 th	Behavioral Sp./ISS	ISS Room	
Tyizanna Floyd	6 th -12 th	Teacher's Aide/Reading	Computer Lab	
Vivian Maynard		Custodian		

Our Beliefs

Faculty Information

- 1. Work day: Normal working hours are from 7:30 a.m. till 3:00 p.m. All faculty and staff are to park in the TAS faculty parking lot. NO EXCEPTIONS. Teachers should sign in at exact time of arrival and departure.
- 2.**Leaving Campus:** Any Staff member who leaves campus during the day must sign out and in on the form for leaving campus. Other than lunch, you must have a leave form to cover any time exceeding 15 minutes when you leave campus.
- 3.Early Departure: If you need to leave early (between 2:30-3:00) for any reason you must clear it with the principal or designee. The only instance that will require no clearance is a complete faculty dismissal.
- 4.**Teacher Certification:** Teachers are responsible for maintaining a valid, current teaching certificate and are responsible for being aware of expiration dates and taking proper steps for certificate renewal. Failure to adhere to the aforementioned will result in non-reappointment.
- 5.Teacher Evaluations (Performance Assessments): The primary purpose of teacher assessment is to provide feedback to support teacher improvement and professional growth that will result in improvement in student learning. Teacher evaluations will be conducted according to Taylor County School Board policy. Observations will be both formal (with advance notice) and informal (without advance notice) and will lead to a summative evaluation for each year
- 6.**Teacher absence:** Teachers who know a day or more in advance that they will need a substitute should make arrangements with the TAS admin secretary. Whenever personal leave or sick leave is granted, see the secretary to arrange for a substitute. Teachers/Staff who realize a need for a substitute before or after school hours should call the TAS Admin secretary at the earliest possible time (Sandra O'Quinn at 838-5416) If your absence is going to be extended, call the school before 2:00 to retain the same substitute.

7.If you are absent you should have prepared:

- a. lesson plans
- b. schedules of the day including extra duties
- c. attendance information
- d. grade book
- e. extra notes the substitute might need to achieve a successful day
- 8. **Leave Form:** Upon your return after an absence, be sure your absence is documented on the appropriate leave form. The office needs this before you sign out on the day of your return. It is the responsibility of each teacher to fill out his/her leave forms. Leave forms for personal leave, temporary duty elsewhere, professional leave and compensatory time must be approved by the principal before submitting leave requests to the Superintendent.
- 9. Substitute Teacher Procedures: Requesting a Substitute Please complete each of these steps to ensure that a substitute is secured in an efficient and timely manner and that your students will not miss instruction: 1. Submit and receive approval from the supervising administrator or designee before requesting a substitute. 2. Request a substitute from via TAS main office secretary via telephone or email. 3. Make all requests for substitutes at least two days in advance of planned time of to ensure a substitute can be secured. 4. Leave a copy of the following information in your classroom: a. Lesson Plans for substitute b. Copies of any worksheets or activities for each student c. Attendance print-outs d. Seating chart Note: Substitute lesson plans must be appropriate for a substitute to teach. Activities requiring in-depth preparation would be challenging for classroom management and should be done when teachers are present. However, activities should involve rigor and keep students actively engaged for the entire class period. Cancelling a Substitute If a teacher no longer needs to have a substitute assigned to his or her classroom, the TAS front office secretary should be notified in person at least two (2) days prior to the substitutes scheduled arrival on campus so the request can be removed/cancelled.
 - 10. Daily Bulletin: E-mail is the official line of communication at TAS. Check your e-mail daily, especially early morning and end of your workday. Messages will be sent to you via e-mail regarding academic and administrative duty. Check for more information that is pertinent for both teachers and students.

Mailboxes/ Email/Mail: Every teacher has a mailbox located in the TAS main admin office where mail is delivered each day. Feachers must check their boxes each day and keep them clear. All teachers are to check their e-mail upon arriving in the morning, during planning time, and before leaving campus at the end of the day. An In School Suspension (ISS) list and Out-of-School Suspension (OSS) list will be sent out electronically at the end of each day for the following day. Teachers are to check this list carefully and to make sure these students are not in their class. They must report to the ISS room. This information is not to be shared with students. Teachers are to check their mailboxes first thing each morning and should check with the office and their mailbox to obtain phone messages.

- 11.**Staff Bulletin Board:** The bulletin board in the TAS main admin office is to be used for posting information for teachers and staff.
- 12. **Faculty meetings:** In lieu of faculty meetings team meetings will be held. Faculty meetings will be held when required due to emergency items. Attendance is required at all faculty meetings. Please let the principal or designee know in advance if you cannot attend a scheduled meeting.
 - 13. Grade books / Focus: Grade books should reflect an accurate documentation of student

assessment and attendance. Adequate assessment should include no less than:

- 1. APEX progress report grade
- 2. Actual Grade for all assigned courses

Focus: All grades should be posted in Focus at the end of the nine week/end of semester

- 14.**Midterm reports:** Midterm reports will be distributed on the days designated during the nine weeks grading period (check calendar for dates). APEX Progress Report should go out to all students. These reports should be created using the APEX electronic grade book on each teacher's computer.
- 15.Conduct grades: We are now required to give a conduct grade in each class. A grade of unsatisfactory must be documented on the student conduct sheet, in a team conference with the student and with parent conference.
- 16.**Bulletin boards:** Bulletin boards and display cases should be purposeful, attractive and reflective of classroom themes and activities; they should be changed at regular intervals. Displays for the front hall display cases must be approved by the Principal/Dean or designee.
- 17.**Dress Code:** Faculty Dress should be according to your school related responsibilities. As professional people, **our attire should reflect professionalism and be in good taste.** Dress on planning days or non-student days can be more casual.
- 18.**Phone calls:** No personal long-distance calls may be charged to the school. All long-distance calls must be logged in. The phone log should be near the phone. Please limit personal calls to three minutes with school phones. Phone calls should be made only during planning time and lunch. Include your number/ extension on all correspondence with parents. If you receive a phone call during instructional time that is NOT an emergency, ask that they call back during your planning or lunch time.
- 19.**Cell phones**: Cell phones are not to be used during class time. Cell phones must be turned off during school hours. This includes faculty as well as students.
- **21.Smoking is not permitted** in the building or on school grounds.
- 20.**Food in the classroom:** Teachers should not eat or drink in the classroom when students are in attendance. Please keep eating in the classrooms to a minimum as this is an element to our pest problems. If the faculty lounge is full, or if you want to have a team meeting in a classroom during lunch, please dispose of your plates, cups etc. in the staff faculty lounge.
- 21.Teacher's lounge: Please help us take care of the lounge by cleaning up behind yourself. The lounge is off-limits to all students. Please do not send students to the lounge for snacks or drinks at any time before, during or after school.
- 22. **Restrooms:** There are staff restrooms in the Main Office and Staff Lounge available to teachers and staff. Students should be encouraged to use student restrooms in their designated classroom/ or designated restroom in the hallway during non-academic time. If a student uses the restroom during class time, he/she must sign a teacher's restroom sheet or use teacher hall pass for hallway restroom. Classrooms hall passes must be monitored closely and only one student is to be sent from an area at any given time.

- 23. Compensatory time: Comp time forms are kept by the TAS admin secretary in the front office. Compensatory time will be given when you are requested by the principal or her designee to stay beyond your normal duty hours. The principal/or designee must approve in advance comp time earned and comp time used. The TAS admin secretary will keep a record of the comp time you earn and use.
- 24. **Visitors:** Visitors will not be allowed on campus. If there is a need for a visit an appointment will need to be made.
- 25. Securing the Facility: When you exit your room, always remember to check and make sure your door is locked and completely closed. This also applies to your wing doors and the main entrance doors as you exit after the custodians have locked up.
- 26.**Student supervision**: For the welfare of our students, it is most important that we provide responsible supervision before school starts, during the school day, and at dismissal. We must be on time and at our doors as students enter the building and classrooms. **No class should be left unattended**. Helping to monitor student activity during class changes is everyone's responsibility. Please go to your door at your class change and keep your eyes on things until your students are in your class. All of these areas must be monitored before and after school, and the cafeteria must be monitored during lunch. All adults are responsible for monitoring the hallways during class changes and assisting students out of their building following the dismissal. If you will be away from your duty post, please make arrangements for another faculty or staff member to cover your post and notify the Principal /or designee
- 27. Custodial and Maintenance Requests: It is the responsibility of each teacher and his/her students to take care of school property in a given area. At the close of school, each teacher will check the room carefully, making sure windows are closed, lights are out, and doors are locked where appropriate. If you have a routine maintenance problem in your room, let the Admin Secretary or Principal/or designee know by way of email or telephone. If an emergency occurs in your area (i.e. roof leak, etc.) contact the Dean of students/ or designee for facilities or the TAS Main Office immediately. Any conditions or emergencies which threaten the health, welfare, or safety of students or staff are to be reported immediately, and in writing, to the Principal or designee
- 28.**Teacher-Parent Conferences**: Conferences are important. Teachers should initiate them. When possible all team members and other involved parties should attend the conference. Teacher initiated conferences with parents serve as an excellent means of facilitating communication for the good of the student. Conferences should be held not only for student problems but also as a means of recognizing exceptional student achievement. All conferences held during the school year should be documented by the teacher.
- 29. Classroom care and appearance: Teachers are responsible for the physical appearance of their classrooms and for the materials and equipment assigned to them. Teachers are expected to demonstrate pride in the appearance of our rooms. Vandalism of any type will not be tolerated. Emphasize to students the importance of taking care of school property. Routine "de-cluttering" will help! At the end of your last academic class, students should pick up anything on the floor and stack their chairs.

31. Accidents and Illnesses of TCAS Students

In order to provide continuity in our reporting to parents, and ensure that students receive assistance, the following guidelines will be followed:

In case of a major accident, make NO attempt to move an injured student; stay with him/her, and call the office for assistance. Please escort, or have another staff member escort, less seriously ill or injured students to the clinic. Students with minor complaints may be sent to the main admin office. After any accident, the teacher in charge is required to complete an Accident Report. These may be obtained from the clinic staff or the main office and should be returned to the administrator. A parent will be contacted as soon as a student arrives in the clinic. No one is to contact parents except the clinic staff, or an TCAS administrator. Parents and students will make a determination as to the best course of action except in the case of a contagious illness which would require the student to go home. Students with minor complaints will remain in the clinic or the attendance office while awaiting parent's arrival. If the parent does not arrive before the period is over, the student will be sent back to class. More severely ill or injured students will wait in the clinic only. • Band-Aids may be administered by any staff member when needed but no internal medication of any kind is to be distributed to students at any time by unauthorized personnel. If students are required to take medication at school, they must be referred to the clinic staff or an administrator. Parents are required to complete medication forms for these purposes. • At the beginning of the school year, a standard health form will be sent home with each student. This is a vital form, and includes such information as parent permission for health screening, for treating a child at the hospital, and identification of special health concerns. If at any time a teacher receives health information on a student, this should be given, in writing, to an administrator as soon as possible.

Accidents and Illness of TCAS Teachers & Staff

Employees All injuries on the job must be reported immediately to an administrator even if it appears to be very minor and an accident report must be filled out. If it is necessary for you to see a doctor, obtain the necessary paperwork from the school secretary or the Financial Manager before seeking medical attention. There are only certain doctors you are allowed to see in dealing with a Worker's Compensation claim. Workers compensation benefits could be negatively impacted if guidelines are not followed. A Workers' Compensation Form is required, whether a claim is made or not.

Classroom management: Teachers are responsible for implementing restorative practices to discipline their students. These policies or rules should be consistent with board policy, school administration policy and philosophy. A copy of team rules should be filed with the Dean's office. Classroom control should be based upon the principles of *Positive Reinforcement*. Appropriate behavior modification practices should be developed and used in each classroom. Let's make our classrooms orderly, *yet warm and positive*.

30.School wide guidelines that should be posted in each classroom:

- a. Be Safe
- b. Be Responsible
- c. Be Respectful
- 31. Confidentiality of Student Information: Principles of Professional Conduct of the State of Florida requires that teachers keep in confidence personally identifiable information obtained in the course of professional service. Failure to comply within the principle could result in a reprimand or loss of certification. Teachers need to be sure that they do not:
- a. Discuss student progress or behavior in the staff faculty lounge or anywhere someone else may be present who is not listed on that student's access-to-information list.
- b. Allow students to grade other student's work, record student grades in your grade book, or see other student's grades in the grade book.
 - c. Share information about any students with other student's parents.

- **32.Planning times**: Planning times are provided to give you time to communicate, organize, and plan the educational programs or activities of the school while relaxing free of student supervision. This time can be used to refresh yourself with a cup of coffee or soft drink while meeting or planning. **To give anyone a different impression of what planning time is would be unwise.**
- **33.Laptops/Textbooks:** Record keeping procedures of laptops, books and book numbers is essential. Use the Student Textbook Assignment Forms which are available in the front office. Remind students that damaged texts and library books will be paid for. Teachers are responsible for the inventory of classroom textbooks. **Students who owe for lost textbooks will not be issued a take home set of textbooks.**
- **34.**Computer Labs: TCAS Computer Labs has two computer labs. Teachers are assigned these computer labs: One Lab for high school student and one computer lab for middle school students. Each teacher using a computer lab with students is responsible for reporting any problems to the school's Technical Contact, the TCAS admin or TCAS dean of students or supervising administrator.
- 35.Computer Usage: All computers are property of the Taylor County School System and are for educational use. However, this does not preclude some personal use consistent with TCSB policies and procedures. Your account is for your use only. Do not let anyone else use your username and password. Please remember that internet use, email, and all documents are public records and can be accessed at any time by the school, the district, or the public.
- 36.**Homework:** Homework is an important part of a student's educational experience. APEX can be accessed at "HOME" for Homework.
- 37.Lunch procedures: Each day teachers are responsible to see that their students are in the lunchroom on time and in a quiet and orderly fashion. Lunchroom monitors will be on duty to maintain order and see that students follow the proper lunchroom rules. The lunch period is scheduled for thirty (30) minutes. Teachers are responsible for being on time and awaiting classes as they return from the cafeteria.
- 38.**Initial lesson plans**: Each teacher is to provide to the Principal or designee within the first 2 weeks of school, lesson plans covering the topics and the text (s) used in his/her classroom activities only.
- 39.**Teacher evaluation**: The assessment process is provided for your growth and enhancement. It is important, and can make a positive difference. The timeline is included in your professional development plan booklet. All in-service, workshops, and conferences are to be recorded through EPDC.
- 40.**School calendar**: Any activity or event that changes the normal flow of students must be placed on the school calendar, located in the TAS main office. In order to be placed on the school calendar, you must turn in your request to the Principal or designee at least 5 days prior to the day of the event. If there is no conflict, and it is approved by the Principal or designee, it will be placed on the calendar. There will be no interruptions of the school day unless it has been approved and placed on the school calendar in advance. When an event is placed on the school calendar, it does not alleviate the teacher's responsibility of letting the appropriate personnel know of your intentions to take students from their classes. This should be done by a list distributed to them prior to the event. The lunchroom should always be notified if your event prohibits students from eating in the cafeteria.

- 41. Field Trips: Field trips should be planned as an integral part of the educational and student reward program. Each teacher is responsible for the planning of field trips. All field trips must be initially approved by the Principal or designee, at least ten days prior to a field trip. A field trip request form should be completed by the sponsor and signed by the Principal or designee. If any students are not allowed to accompany their team on a field trip for disciplinary or academic reasons, one of the team teachers will remain with these students. In planning a field trip, follow the procedures below:
 - a. Discuss plans for the trip with the Principal or Dean of students.
 - b. Contact the bus garage to confirm the availability of buses on the projected date. Secure from the bus garage the total cost of the trip. Be sure to include the cost of a sub driver if the trip necessitates a sub to cover the driver's route.
 - c. Complete the bus request form at least 2 weeks prior to the trip.
 - d. Coordinate sack lunches if needed with the lunchroom manager, with at least two weeks advance notice.
 - e. Collect and turn in the total amount for expenses to Admin Secretary prior to the trip.
 - f. Be sure a notarized field trip permission form is completed on each child.
- g. Secure chaperones as required by Board policy. All school functions and recreational activities such as socials, parties, excursions, and similar activities under the sponsorship of the school should have two (2) chaperones for a group of fifteen (15) or more students and one (1) additional chaperone for each twenty-five students; chaperones shall be approved by the principal. At least one chaperone shall be an instructional staff member. Inform all students that are going on the field trip that they must go with the class and on the bus. Students may be turned over to their parents on the return trip. An instructional staff member must be on the bus.
- ***The TAS main admin secretary must also be consulted concerning collection of monies related to the trip at this time.***
- 42. **Socials and parties**: Any money to be paid for the social or party expense will be paid by check through TAS admin office secretary. Expenses will not be paid from money collected at the door of the social. Sponsors for social or parties will follow procedures outlined for turning in social receipts to the TAS admin office secretary.
- 43.**Fundraising**: All fundraising activities by teams or individuals must be requested by using an activity form. Fund raisers must have complete approval following the activity request procedures before proceeding with plans. By request of the School Board we must turn in a fund raiser calendar for the year. Students may not sell items for fundraising which are not school related.
- 44. Activity Form: The activity form should be used for any event outside the normal routine classroom activity. This includes, but is not limited to guest speakers, videos not obtained from the school library, field trips, car washes, assembly programs, and socials. The acidity request forms are located in the front office. Once you complete the activity form, turn it into the assistant principal.
- 45. Fire/Lock Down Drills: One fire drill and code red drill per month will be held. The emergency fire drill signal will consist of either the electrical alarm or short blasts from the bell. Windows and doors should be closed, and lights and other electrical equipment turned off. Students should exit quietly in single file. Upon exiting, students should face away from the buildings. Roll should be taken. The evacuation map must be posted in your room near the door (please review with your classes the first day of school). The lock down drill will follow the plan outlined in the District Crisis Intervention Plan.

46. Tornado Procedures:

- a. Alert Notification: The Taylor County Civil Defense office will notify the School Superintendent's office of all weather warnings. The superintendent's office will then notify all school and offices. Each school will then notify all staff and individual classes.
 - b. Tornado Drill Procedures:
 - 1. First Call: Tornado Watch (possibility that tornado may develop)
 - 2. Second Call: Tornado Warning (a tornado has been sighted)
 - 3. If the tornado warning goes into effect, do the following:
 - * B,C,D, and E wings go to the southwest corner of your classroom. Squat down and cover your head.
 - * F-Wing goes into the hall and squats down.
 - * G-Wing into the small hall between the classrooms.
 - * Gym classes go into north east corner of the gym.
 - * Library students should remain in library at the south end away from glass doors.
 - * Guidance office goes into the conference room.
 - * Deans' office in the bathrooms in the offices.
 - 47. Injuries: Any accident or injury occurring to students or staff members should be reported to the office immediately. Accident reports must be filled out by the teacher in charge at the time of the accident. (See #28. Accident and Illness of TCAS student)
 - 48. **Safety inspections**: We are subject to a facilities inspection at any time in our school. Please check that you **do not** have the following items in your rooms.
 - a. drink bottles
 - b. aerosol cans of any kind
 - c. bleach
 - d. lighter fluid
 - e. cleaner of any kind except hand soap
 - f. rags, old clothes, junk of any kind
 - g. poisonous liquids
 - h. mouth wash
 - i. gasoline
 - i. insect spray
 - k. Alcohol
 - 49. **Copy service**: Teachers are permitted to run off their own materials. The risograph is to be used only for 25 or more copies. The front office may assist you in running off your papers, but they must have them at least 3 days in advance. We ask that you be professional and frugal in the use of the copy machines and paper. The expense can get out of hand.
- 48. **Inventory and property accounting**: An inventory of your room should be done at the beginning, middle, and end of the school year. These are the guidelines for inventory:
 - a. Inventory everything with or without a property number
 - b. Specify how many and record the property number. If you cannot read the number or one is not present, please specify.
 - c. If an item is removed or transferred, please fill out a Transfer of Property notice.
 - d. If a new item has been received, and after one month no property control number has been attached, notify the office.

- 49. **Principles of Professional Conduct**: Teachers should adhere to the "Principles of Professional Conduct of the Education Profession in Florida". Please remember when discussing a student with a colleague to do so in a professional manner. Be careful not to discuss students in group settings such as in the faculty lounge.
- 50. **Negligence**: Negligence is defined as the omission to do something which a reasonable person, guided by those ordinary considerations which ordinarily regulate human affairs, would do, or the doing of something which a reasonable and prudent person would not do. The duties of a teacher are: proper instruction, proper supervision, and proper maintenance.
- 51. "SEVEN DEADLIES": The State of Florida has outlined specific offenses for which teachers may be suspended or dismissed. These have come to be known in educational circles as the "Seven Deadlies". To avoid commission of the "Seven Deadlies", which will insure a conference with the principal:
 - 1. Do not commit money in the name of Taylor County Accelerated School without the principal's permission.
 - 2. Do not leave inadequate lesson plans for substitute teachers.
 - 3. Do not let the principal first hear about unusual occurrences in your class from students . or parents.
 - 4. Do not make complaints about the school to the community without first having shared them with the principal.
 - 5. Do not request to disrupt the school day without going through proper channels.
 - 6. Do not engage in unprofessional talk, in front of visitors or students.
 - 7. Do not place the principal in the position of defending indefensible actions.
- 52. **Authority to remove disruptive students**: HB 1009 and HB 341 give school personnel the authority to deal with students who are seriously disrupting the learning process and who may need alternative placement. This legislation seeks to minimize classroom distribution while a disruptive students' educational placement is reviewed when the current placement is creating an unsafe or disruptive learning environment, or is not meeting the student's learning needs.

A teacher may expel a student from his/her classroom provided the following steps have been taken:

- 1. The teacher's classroom management plan has been followed and a parent contact made.
 - 2. The district discipline matrix for that particular disruptive behavior has been followed:

However, in situations where a disruptive student poses a threat to the safety and well-being of a teacher or student(s) in a classroom setting that student may be expelled from that particular classroom setting.

- 53. **Student Conduct:** All teachers must have a classroom discipline plan posted. Implement your classroom discipline plan and school procedures with fidelity. Recognize that once a disciplinary referral has been submitted via Focus, then, the matter is out of your hands. Remember that when a student returns to class after a referral is written, the process starts over again. Recognize students or classes that consistently exhibit outstanding conduct. TCAS has a Discipline Matrix/Disciplinary Policies that is updated annually by the deans of each school based on the needs of the school. A copy of the current plan is available on TCSB website.
- 54. **Technological problems**: If you experience technological problems you should complete a work

order online. See TCSB websites.

55. Attendance procedures: Morning procedures

- * Attendance will be recorded as outlined by the "Focus" system.
- * After the tardy bell, students must pick up tardy slip from the deans office.

56. Tardies and absentee notes (notification of excused absences): Students entering the classroom after the tardy bell are considered tardy and should not be admitted to class without a tardy slip. When a student brings in a note for being absent, each teacher should send that note to the TAS admin office. The TAS admin office determines if the note is excused or unexcused according to Florida Statues and School Board policy.

ATTENDANCE REGULATIONS

The Legislature finds that poor academic performance is associated with nonattendance and that school districts must take an active role in promoting and enforcing attendance as a means of improving student performance. The Legislature finds that early intervention in school attendance is the most effective way of producing good attendance habits that will lead to improve student learning and achievement.

Attendance procedures shall be carried out in accordance with Taylor County School Board Rule 5.02, Florida Statute 1003.26, and the Code of Student Conduct and Attendance Policies.

- a. According to FS 1003.26, any student between the ages of 6 and 16 is within compulsory school attendance age requiring regular school attendance. Parents of a child within the compulsory school attendance age shall be responsible for such child's attendance as required by FS 1003.26. It is understood that ALL students will be subject to the stipulations within this attendance policy. Attendance is required of all students for at least 180 days of instruction or the equivalent as provided by law, except for absences which are excused or as otherwise provided by law.
- b. Attendance is defined as the actual presence of a student at school or away from school on a school day engaged in an educational activity that constitutes a part of the school-approved instructional pupil program.

Policies Governing K- 12 Attendance

Absence is defined as the nonattendance of a student on days that school is scheduled to be in session. Absences may be defined as excused or unexcused in accordance with local policy.

Excused Absences

In compliance with Florida School Laws, the Taylor County School Board recognizes excused absences as those resulting the following:

- Absence resulting from sickness, injury or other insurmountable conditions or participation in an approved academic program or class;
- Participation in the observance of a religious holiday or in religious instruction;
- Death in the immediate family of the student. (Immediate family is defined as parents, siblings, grandparents, aunts and uncles, and in some cases, other persons in the household);
- Documented doctor or dentist appointments;
- Pre-excused educational/field trip; and
- Insurmountable weather conditions.

Students who miss one (1) or more periods during the school day must, within three (3) school days,

bring a note from a parent or guardian stating the reasons for that absence. Excused absences are described above.

If a student fails to bring a note within three (3) school days after being absent, or if the reason is not a valid one, the student will receive an unexcused absence for the days/classes missed and the following rules will be in effect.

- students will receive credit on work made up from an excused absence, and will receive at least ½ credit on completed work missed during the unexcused absence; and
- Students with unexcused absences and determined to be truant or skipping are subject to disciplinary action.

Students returning to school after an excused absence shall have a time period equal to the number of days excused or a minimum of five (5) days, whichever is greater, to make up missed work. It is the student's responsibility to make arrangements with their teachers to complete missed work. If reasonable doubt exists regarding a sickness or injury, the principal is authorized to require a statement from an accepted medical authority. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the absence being unexcused.

***TCAS will accept three (3) parent notes per semester. A doctor's note is required after that.

Unexcused Absences

(1) Inadequate or unacceptable reason for the absence; i.e. car trouble, oversleeping, alarm and power failures are all unexcused (2) Results from school disciplinary action (3) Truancy

Parents will be notified of unexcused or unexplained absences. If a pattern of non-attendance develops, parents will be asked to conference with school staff and participate in efforts to remediate the situation. If unexcused absences continue, truancy procedures will be initiated.

Pre-excused Absences

Absences for vacation or other anticipated reasons must be given prior approval from an administrator and the student must make arrangements for completion of work prior to the absence. Students with excessive absences will not be excused for such reasons.

57. Promotional Policy for Middle School students at TCAS: In accordance with 6A-1.09401 SBR, the Next Generation Sunshine/ Florida State Standards shall be the basis for the curriculum and instruction in grades 6 - 8. These benchmarked standards provide a broad curriculum base and describe what students should know and be able to do in grades 6-8 in the subjects of language arts, math, science, social studies, art, health/physical education, and foreign language will be included in the middle school curriculum. Appropriate instruction and assessment of mastery will be provided to assist students in the achievement of these standards. (1008.25(2)(a), Florida Statutes)

Florida Course Descriptions for Grades 6 - 12, Basic and Adult Education which provides the essential content and course requirements for courses listed in the Course Code Directory and Personnel Assignments for Florida Schools will form the basis of instruction for each course. In order to successfully complete a course, a student must master these Course Descriptions and obtain a passing grade for the course. Methods for assessing mastery of these standards can be by observation, classroom work, homework assignments, and examinations,

including mandated state EOC assessments. Certification of mastery of these standards will be a passing score in the course. The grading scale is as follows:

SECONDARY GRADING – HIGH/MIDDLE SCHOOL

Grade	Percent	Grade Point Value	Definition
A	90-100	4	Outstanding Progress
В	80-89	3	Above Average Progress
C	70-79	2	Average Progress
D	60-69	1	Lowest Acceptable Progress
F	50-59	0	Failure
I	0	0	Incomplete

The annual course grade will be determined by the average of the nine-week grades. Students must have a minimum of a 60 average to pass the course. This includes reading, language arts, math, science and social studies. In addition,

- Mastery of 70% of the Florida State Standards and grade level expectations will be attained by students functioning on grade level and maintaining a 60 average in each course.
- Middle school students enrolled in courses for high school credit shall be graded in accordance with the provisions of high school section of this plan.(1003.43(1)(k) Florida Statutes)
- The yearly GPA is determined by averaging the final grade for each class. The final grade for each class is determined by multiplying the quality point value of the final class grade (A=4, B=3, C=2, D=1, F=0) times the length of the course (Full year = 1.0; Semester = .5; Quarter = .25). All students must have a 2.0 GPA to be promoted to the next grade.
- Remediation and elective courses for middle school students will have numeric grades in these courses that will impact their GPA.
- The report card will clearly depict and grade: a student's academic performance in each class or course in grades 6 through 8 based on examinations as well as written papers, class participation, and other academic performance criteria; a student's conduct and behavior; and a student's attendance, including absences and tardiness (1003.33(1) Florida Statutes) The final report card for a school year shall contain a statement indicating end-of-the-year status or performance or nonperformance at grade level, acceptable or unacceptable behavior and attendance, and promotion or non-promotion. Schools shall not exempt any student from academic performance requirements, such as final exams, based on practices or policies designed to encourage student attendance. A student's attendance record may not be used in whole or in part to provide an exemption from any academic performance requirement. ((1003.33.(2) Florida Statutes)

Florida Virtual School: Florida Virtual School is a fully accredited public virtual school that offers free online courses to middle school and high school students in Florida. It provides options for students, parents, school districts and schools. For more information you can visit info@flvs.net_ and get information regarding planning for education for your child, or visit https://www.flvs.net/

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADES 6-8

The following courses or subjects shall be required in grades 6-8:

- a. Three courses in mathematics, middle school level or higher. At least 1 high school level math course must be offered
 - (Advanced Math is offered to eligible 7th grade students, and Algebra I is offered to eligible students entering 8th grade).
- b. Three courses in language arts, which shall include experiences in reading, writing, and speaking
- c. Three courses in science, which shall include instruction in life science, earth/space science and physical science.
- d. Three courses in social studies/civics, which shall include the study of United States history and government, world geography, Florida history and world history. Students will take a Civics EOC as part of the required state assessment.
- e. Computer literacy skills.
- f. One semester per year of physical education unless a waiver applies.
 - remedial classes for deficient areas which may be scheduled in place of the P.E. elective.
 - The P.E. requirement may be waived when one of the following is true:
 - The student is required to take remedial coursework.
 - The student requests and qualifies for band.
 - The student is participating in physical activities beyond the school day which meet or exceed the requirement.
- g. A series of unified arts experiences shall be provided for student development which may include, but not be limited to, the following: art, music, foreign languages, and technology education. Such experiences shall be regularly scheduled as possible in grades 6 through 8 when funds are available.
- h. Comprehensive health education which includes substance abuse prevention, acquired immune deficiency syndrome and communicable disease prevention, human growth and development, human sexuality and pregnancy prevention, and personal health and hygiene, and shall also provide for instruction, where appropriate, that abstinence from sexual activity outside of marriage is the expected standard for all school age children; and abstinence from sexual activity is a certain way to avoid pregnancy, sexual transmission of acquired immune deficiency syndrome, and other communicable diseases which are transmitted sexually.

A. Placement for Good Cause Requirements

Grades 6-8 students failing to demonstrate mastery in Reading, Math, Writing or Science: Request for promotion for Good Cause may be made for documented reasons including, but not limited to:

- 1. Classroom performance as evidenced by a student portfolio or a report card that indicates the ability to apply grade level skills, and/or scored at a Level 2 or above on the FSA Reading and Math tests.
- 2. The student demonstrated an acceptable level of performance on an alternative standardized assessment approved by the State Board of Education. The assessment to be used is the End of Course Exam for both Reading and Math.

6-12 Extra-Curricular Activities Eligibility Requirements

TCAS does not offers a variety of sports, clubs, and other extra-curricular organizations at TAS. However, TCAS students are allowed to participate sports, club and extra-circular organizations at TCHS and TCMS in which we encourage students to become involved in. Selection of members and participation in these extra-curricular activities varies. Please consult with the coaches/sponsors at TCHS/TCMS if you have any questions on specific requirements.

Before a student may participate or practice, he/she must adhere to the following policies:

- 1. Eligibility for Athletic Participation: Must be in accordance with all the Florida High School Activities Association Eligibility Standards. Students must have at least a 2.0 GPA
- 2. Try-Outs: No student may try-out for a team after the designated sign-up/formal practices have begun. Exceptions may be granted for following conditions: documented illness, transfer, participating in another sport, or pre- approved absence.
- 3. Insurance: All athletes must have insurance provided by school or parents, or submit a written release of responsibility by school from parent or guardian.
- 4. Physical: All athletes must have an up-to-date physical before beginning practice.
- 5. Parent Consent: All athletes must have a consent form signed by parent or guardian before beginning practice.
- 6. Birth Certificate: All athletes must show proof of age by submitting a birth certificate to the coach for registration.
- 7. Equipment: All athletes are responsible for the equipment issued to them. Lost or mishandled equipment will be charged to the athlete.
- 8. If a student athlete's conduct results in an FHSAA fine, the student is responsible for paying the fine. The student will not be eligible to participate in any athletic event until the fine is paid in full.
- 9. A student violating the saggy pants rule a second time may be ineligible to participate in extracurricular activity for a period of time not to exceed 5 days and for a third offense or subsequent offense be ineligible for a period not to exceed 30 days.
- 10. Discipline: Students on suspension cannot participate in extra-curricular activities during the suspension.
- 11. Students must be in attendance for at least ½ the school day to be eligible to participate in extra-curricular activities that same day.
- 12. Students who have violated the district's drug and alcohol policy are not eligible to participate in extra-curricular activities until they have completed a rehabilitation program with an accredited counseling service provider and provided the school with a clean drug test.

The **Florida Educational Equity Act**, chapter 228.2001 Florida Statutes, requires that public education agencies regularly notify staff, students, and applicants for employment, parents, collective bargaining units, and the general public of its policies of non-discrimination. The information below is posted to comply with the requirements of the act.

The Taylor County Public School district does not discriminate the basis of sex, race, color, ethnic or national origin, religion, marital status, disability, age, political beliefs, sexual orientation, gender, gender identification, social and family background, linguistic preference, pregnancy, or any other basis prohibited by law in its educational programs, services or activities or in its hiring or employment practices. Retaliation against an employee for engaging in a protected activity is prohibited. The District also provides equal access to its facilities to the Boys Scouts and other patriotic youth groups, as required by the Boys Scouts of America Equal Access Act.

Limited-English-Language skills will not be a barrier to admission or participation in educational programs including Career and Technical Educational programs. Such programs offered by the high school and Taylor Technical Institute include:

- · Business, Management & Administration
- · Health Science
- · Human services
- · Information Technology
- Manufacturing
- · Architecture & Construction

Applicants/individual with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with disabilities ACT (ADA) may call the district's Superintendent's Office at 850-838-2500 for assistance.

Questions, complaints or request for additional information regarding discrimination or harassment may be sent to Michael Thompson, Director of Personnel, Taylor County School superintendent's Office, 318 North Clark Street, Perry, Florida 32347, Ph: 850-838-2500, email: michael.thompson@taylor.k12.fl.us

Parents, student or employees who have reason to believe that this policy has been violated may click here to access a printable form that can be filled out and returned.

CLASSROOM TRANSFER PROCESS: A parent has the right to request that his or her student be transferred to a different classroom teacher: however, this does not give a parent the right to choose a specific classroom teacher. A request for such transfer is to be made in writing to the school principal. Within 2 weeks after receiving the request, the school will approve or deny the request. A denial of such a request shall specify the reason(s). The school principal's decision is final.

A parent whose student is assigned an out-of-field teacher may request that his or her child be transferred to an in-field classroom teacher within the school and grade in which the student is currently enrolled; however, this does not give a parent the right to choose a specific classroom teacher. A request for such transfer is to be made in writing to the school principal. The school district must approve or deny the parent's request and transfer the student to a different classroom teacher within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 2 week, if an in-field teacher for the course or grade level is employed by the school and the transfer does not violate maximum class

size pursuant to s.1003.03 and 3677 s.1, Art IX of the State Constitution. If a request for transfer is denied the school must notify the parent and specify the reason(s).

<u>PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE</u>: The Pledge of Allegiance: "I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it stands; one nation under God, indivisible, with Liberty and justice for all," shall be rendered by students standing with the right hand over the heart. The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag shall be recited at the beginning of the day in each public, elementary, middle and high school in the state.

Upon written request by his or her parent, a student must be excused from reciting the pledge, including standing and placing the right hand over his or her heart. When the pledge is given, unexcused students must show full respect to the flag by standing at attention, men removing the headdress, except when such headdress is worn for religious purposes, as provided by Pub. L. ch.77-435, s. 7, approved June 22, 1942, 56 Stat. 377, as amended by Pub. L. ch.77-806, 56 Stat. 1074, approved December 22, 1942.

GUN FREE SCHOOLS ACT: 1006.13.(2) The zero tolerance policy shall require students found to have committed one of the following offenses to be expelled, with or without continuing educational services, from the student's regular school for a period of not less than 1 full year, and to be referred to the criminal justice or juvenile justice system. (a) Bringing a firearm or weapon, as defined in Chapter 790, to school, to any school function, or onto any school-sponsored transportation or possessing a firearm at the school. (b) Making a threat or false report, as defined by ss.790.162 and 790.163, respectively, involving school or school personnel's property, school transportation, or a school-sponsored activity.

Student Records and Privacy:

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents certain rights with respect to student's education records. These rights are:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the school receives a request for access. Parents must submit a written request to the principal that identifies the record(s) you wish to inspect. The principal will make arrangements for access and notify the parent of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- 2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education record that you believe is inaccurate or misleading. Parents must write the principal, clearly identify the part of the record the parent wants changed, and specify why it is inaccurate or misleading. If the school decides not to amend the record as requested, the school will notify the parent of the decision and advise the parent of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment.
- 3. The right to consent to disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A

school official is a person employed by the district as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff; the person elected to the school board; or, a person or company with whom the district has contracted to perform a specific task. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Personal identifiable information will be released without consent to appropriate officials in emergency situations, to comply with a lawfully issued subpoena and in cases involving compulsory school attendance and child abuse.

EOUITY POLICY STATEMENT - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE: The Taylor County School Board complies with all state statutes, including statues on veteran's preference and the Florida Education Equity Act, as well as all federal statues, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. The Taylor County School Board does not discriminate against any applicant for employment or admission, whether student or employee, on the basis of sex, race, religion, ethnic or national origin, age, marital status, disability, or educational background of the individual. Any claim that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication regarding any of the above mentioned statutes may be processed as a grievance as herein provided, but limited to the intent of this procedure and related in no way to negotiated contract.

If a person believes there is a basis for a grievance, he or she shall discuss the alleged grievance with the site administrator. If the site administrator is the offending person, the report should be made to the next higher level of administration or supervision. If satisfactory relief is not given, a complaint may be filed with the Superintendent of Schools. Summary of the conference shall be recorded on district forms entitled "Conference Form Affirmative Action" or "School Conference Form Affirmative Action (Student Complaint)."

Any applicant, employee, or student claiming to have been discriminated against because of sex, race, religion, ethnic or national origin, age, marital status, disability, or educational background may file a complaint with the Superintendent of School, provided such complaint is filed within sixty days after the initial complaint is made to the principal or administrator.

Within five workdays of receipt of such complaint, the superintendent shall send the complainant a written acknowledgement of the complaint, advising that it will be acted on according to procedures set forth in the complaint procedures.

In any complaint alleging discrimination, the superintendent shall, within ten workdays after the complaint has been received, designate a three-member panel to investigate the charges.

The panel will be charged with conducting an investigation of the complainant's charges/ The three-member investigative panel will be organized as follows. The superintendent will appoint one member from the affirmative action advisory committee, one member will be recommended by the complainant, and the third member, who will chair the panel, will be appointed by the other two members of the panel.

In no instance shall any member of the investigative panel be directly involved in the complaint or occupy a position that would represent the school board in any subsequent litigation.

Within thirty calendar days after receipt of the assignment, the investigative panel shall submit a report to the superintendent, which will include, but not be limited to the following:

- (a) By the complainant,
- (b) Affidavits by witnesses testifying on behalf of the complainant,
- (c) Affidavits by any witnesses testifying on behalf of the school board,
- (d) Affidavits by the school board as to the facts of the issue,
- (e) Statement of position by the school board, together with any documents in support of the position,
- (f) Records and documents gathered in evidence from the school board,
- (g) The investigative panel's summary and recommendation to the superintendent.

Within ten workdays after receipt of the investigative panel's recommendation, the superintendent shall make a decision as to the recommendation that will be made to the school board and within twenty workdays of the panel's recommendation, the complainant will be notified of the board's action by certified mail. In the event the board's decision favors the complainant, the superintendent shall affect a resolution that will provide relief for the complainant and all others similarly situated from the discriminatory practice.

The superintendent or any other officer or employee of the school system shall be prohibited from taking any retaliatory action against any person involved in the discriminatory proceedings.

For discrimination issues contact:

Michael Thompson, Director of Personnel, 850-838-2500, Taylor District Schools, 318 N. Clark St. Perry, FL 32347 or you can email him at michael.thompson@taylor.k12.fl.us

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY STATEMENT: Taylor District Schools have adopted sexual harassment policies and will not tolerate sexual harassment by any of its students, employees, or volunteers based on race, color, sex, age, religion, disability, creed, marital status or national origin. A complete description of the student and employee sexual harassment policy is located in the School Board Policy Handbook and at each school site.

Bullying, Harassment or Intimidation— The Taylor County School District is committed to protecting its' students, employees, and applicants for admission from bullying, harassment or discrimination for any reason and of any type. A Harassment or Intimidation (bullying) reporting form is available on the district's website at https://www.taylor.k12.fl.us/ or at each work / school site's front office.

FortifyFL- FortifyFL is a suspicious activity reporting tool that allows you to instantly relay information to appropriate law enforcement agencies and school officials. You decide whether you want to include your name and contact information.

SEARCH AND SEIZURE: It is the goal of the School Board of Taylor County that all school environments remain safe and students remain free from harm. These procedures are implemented as a means of achieving that goal through the use of personal searches, searches of property and searches of motor vehicles upon school property. It is the intent of the School Board that searches be conducted in the least intrusive manner possible in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of students, faculty, staff and visitors.

TYPES OF SEARCH: The rights of students as citizens to be free from unreasonable search shall be preserved in the schools, however, when an administrator has a reasonable suspicion that an

individual possesses an item of contraband, the following types of search may be utilized as appropriate.

- 1. Search of the person.
- 2. Search of property (lockers, containers or parcels and motor vehicles).

A complete description of the student and employee search and seizure policy is located in the School Board Policy Handbook and at each school site.

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS SCHOOL BOARD POLICY:

- (1) use of illicit drugs and the unlawful possession and use of alcohol is wrong and harmful.
- (2) The illegal use, possession, or sale of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances, as defined in Chapter 893, or possession of electronic telephone pagers by any student while such student is upon school property or in attendance at a school function is grounds for suspension, expulsion, or imposition of other disciplinary action by the school, and may result in criminal penalties being imposed.
- (3) Policies concerning the use, possession, or sale of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances as defined in Chapter 893, or possession of electronic telephone pagers will be included in the Code of Student Conduct to be distributed annually to all teachers, school personnel, students, and parents or guardians at the beginning of each school year.
- (4) The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings, unless the text requires otherwise
- (a) "Alcoholic beverages" means distilled spirits and all beverages containing one-half of one percent of alcohol by volume.
- (b) "Drugs" mean cannabis, the seeds thereof, and the resin extracted from any part of the plant: Narcotics: Barbiturates and related sedatives: Cocaine: Hallucinogens: Amphetamines: Minor and major tranquilizers; and any other drug that is listed as a substance in Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. Drugs also include, and by definition mean prescription drugs, over the counter drugs, diet pills, vitamins, stimulants, such as "No Doze", and the various mail order caffeine stimulants that are shaped to look like various prescription amphetamines.
- (c) "Sale" means the actual constructive, or attempted transfer from one person to another for any consideration or remuneration whatsoever.
- (d) "Giving" means the actual constructive, or attempted transfer from one person to another without remuneration whatsoever.
- (e) "Second offense" means any second offense during a given school year while in membership in Taylor County Schools.
- (f) "Controlled substance" means any substance named or described in Schedules I through V of Florida Statutes 893.03. Laws controlling the manufacture, distribution, preparation, or administration of such substances are drug abuse laws.
- (5) Any student who sells, gives, possesses, uses or is under the influence of any alcoholic beverage, counterfeit, controlled substance and/or drugs, on the school grounds or at any school sponsored activity shall be suspended for 10 days and shall be recommended for expulsion from school for the remainder of the school year. However, if the incident occurs within the last nine weeks, the student may also be expelled for all or a portion of the next school year. The School Board may require a determined number of hours of community work experience and mandatory school probation in lieu of expulsion for all or a portion of the next school year.

Any second offense shall result in a recommendation to the School Board for expulsion with no waiver.

Any student recommend for expulsion under this policy shall have a mandatory hearing before the

School Board.

- (6) All TAS students who are subject to discipline or expulsion for unlawful possession, use, or for being under the influence of any alcoholic beverage or a substance controlled under Chapter 893 may be entitled to a waiver of the discipline or expulsion as described in Sections (1) and (b) listed below.
- (a) If he divulges information leading to the arrest of the person who supplied such alcoholic beverage or controlled substance to him and agrees to fully cooperate in providing information necessary for prosecution as well as acknowledging his willingness to testify in a trial. Additionally a waiver may be granted if the student voluntarily disclosed his unlawful possession of such alcoholic beverage or controlled substance prior to his arrest. Any information divulged which leads to such arrest and conviction is not admissible in evidence in subsequent criminal trial against the pupil divulging such information.
- (b) If the pupil commits himself, or is referred by the court in lieu of sentence, to a state licensed drug abuse program and successfully completes the program, his suspension may be reduced for a period of time up to 5 days. If at any time the student is discharged from said program for non-compliance, the original discipline will be reinstated.
- (c) In lieu of completion of above mentioned drug abuse program (6) (b), the agency or organization providing such a program may submit written verification of the student's intent to enroll in and complete said program. Such verification must include the location, dates, and times of the program, and signature of a program administrator.

The student and his/her parent/s must provide written documentation, including program name, location, dates, times, and signatures of student and parent/s. This letter shall indicate student intent and parental support of the enrollment in and completion of a drug abuse program.

- (7) appropriate law enforcement agency shall be notified immediately in each instance where a student is found in violation of the policy.
- (8) When a student is formally charged with a felony by a proper prosecuting attorney for the unlawful use, , or sale of any substance controlled under Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, the principal shall proceed as prescribed in State Board of Education Rule 6A-1.0956. The Superintendent shall furnish each principal with a copy of this rule.
- (9) Pursuant to Florida Statutes, if a student is adjudicated guilty for the unlawful possession or sale of any controlled substance under Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, the student shall automatically be subject to the above provisions.
- (10) Electronic telephone pagers are prohibited on school property or at any school sponsored function. Pagers may be confiscated, and the student may be subject to disciplinary action by the school.
- (11) At all elementary schools, in circumstances involving possession of controlled substance, drugs, and/or alcohol, the elementary principal shall try to determine intent prior to enforcing a suspension. On first offense cases, if the principal determines that a legitimate use exists (i.e., medication), the student shall be reprimanded, and the parent (s) or legal guardian notified of the violation and warded of their child's suspension if subsequent violation of possession occurs.
- (12) School personnel are required to report to the principal or the principal's designee any suspected unlawful use, possession, or sale by a student of any controlled substance as defined in FS 893.02; any counterfeit controlled substance, as defined in FS 891.01; any alcoholic beverage, ad defined in 561.01 (4); or model glue. School personnel are exempt from liability when reporting in good faith to the proper school authority such suspected unlawful use, possession, or sale by a student. Only a principal or a principal's designee is authorized to contact a parent or legal guardian of a student regarding this situation.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: Section 230.22(2), Florida Statutes

LAWS IMPLEMENTED: Section 232.26; 230.23(6); 232.277; Chapter 893; 56101(4), Florida Statutes

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATIONRULE: 6A-1.0956 Revised: March 1996; September 1998; May 2001; April 2002

CERTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL POLICY:

Except for employment under emergency conditions as provided in Section 236.0711, Florida Statutes, no person shall be employed or continued in employment if he/she does not hold or is ineligible to hold a valid Florida Educator's Certificate. The staff member shall be responsible for maintaining a valid certificate. The staff member shall register his/her certificate and each certificate reissuance or renewal in the district office as soon as the Department of Education issues the new validity period on the certificate. The deadline for establishing a new certificate level or training in the district office shall be September 1 of each school year.

(1) The Superintendent shall designate a Certification Contact to work directly with the Bureau of Teacher Certification,

Florida Department of Education, to assist personnel with certification issues.

- (2) A teacher may not teach outside the field for which he/she is certified for more than one school year unless the teacher has earned sufficient credits to continue to remain outside the field of certification.
- (3) A teacher will be considered qualified in the field of assignment if one of the following conditions is met:
- (a) holds a valid Florida Educator's Certificate with an appropriate coverage as provided in the Course Code Directory for teaching the course, or
- (b) Holds a valid Florida Educator's Certificate and has a minor in the field in which instruction is provided, as shown on an official college transcript or as verified in writing by the college or university, or
- (c) Holds a valid Florida Educator's Certificate and has demonstrated sufficient subject area expertise in the subject area in which the instruction is provided by presenting a passing score on the subject area test of the Florida Teacher Certification Examination.
- (4) A teacher who has not met the requirement for demonstration of mastery of general knowledge by passing the required state test within one calendar year of employment may not be continued in employment in any position that requires a Temporary Certificate past the end of the contract year in which the one calendar year falls.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: Sections 230.22 (2); 230.23 (7) Florida Statutes LAWS IMPLEMENTED: Sections 231.0861 (3); 231.15; 231.17; 236.0711, Florida Statutes STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION RULES: 6a-1.0501; 6a-1.0502; 6a-1.0503 TAYLOR SCHOOL BOARD APPROVED - MARCH 19, 2002

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES: This notice describes how medical information about you may be used and disclosed and how you can get access to this information:

Department of Health Duties

The Department of Health is required by law to maintain the privacy of your protected health information. This Notice of Privacy Practices tells you how your protected health information may be used and how the department keeps your information private and confidential. This notice

explains the legal duties and practices relating to your protected health information. As part of the department's legal duties this Notice of Privacy Practices must be given to you. The department is required to follow the terms of the Notice of Privacy Practices currently in effect. The Department of Health may change the terms of its notice. The change, if made, will be effective for all protected health information that it maintains. New or revised notices of privacy practices will be posted on the Department of Health website at www.myflorida.com and will be available by email and at all Department of Health buildings. Uses and Disclosures of your protected health information. Protected health information includes demographic and medical information that concerns the past, present, or future physical or mental health of an individual. Demographic information could include your name, address, telephone number, social security number and any other means of identifying you as a specific person. Protected health information contains specific information that identifies a person or can be used to identify a person. Protected health information is health information created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer, or health care clearinghouse. The Department of Health can act as each of the above business types. This medical information is used by the Department of Health in many ways while performing normal business activities. Your protected health information may be used or disclosed by the Department of Health for purposes of treatment, payment, and health care operations. Health care professionals use medical information in the clinics or hospital to take care of you. Your protected health information may be shared, with or without your consent, with another health care provider for purposes of your treatment. The Department of Health may use or disclose your health information for case management and services. The Department of Health clinic or hospital may send the medical information to insurance companies, Medicaid, or community agencies to pay for the services provided to you. Your information may be used by certain department personnel to improve the department's health care operations. The department also may send you appointment reminders, information about treatment options or other health related benefits and services. Some protected health information can be disclosed without your written authorization as allowed by law. Those circumstances include:

Reporting abuse of children, adults, or disabled persons.

- £ Investigations related to a missing child.
- £ Internal investigations and audits by the department's divisions, bureaus, and offices.
- £ Investigations and audits by the state's Inspector General and Auditor General and the legislature's Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability.
- \pounds Public health purposes including vital statistics, disease reporting, public health surveillance, investigations, interventions and regulation of health professionals.
- £ District medical examiner investigations.
- £ Research approved by the department.
- £ Court orders, warrants, or subpoenas.
- £ Law enforcement purposes, administrative investigations, and judicial and administrative proceedings. Other uses and disclosures of your protected health information by the department will require your written authorization. This authorization will have an expiration date that can be revoked by you in writing. These uses and disclosures may be for marketing and for research purposes. Certain uses and disclosure of psychotherapist notes will also require your written authorization.

Individual Rights

You have the right to request the Department of Health to restrict the use and disclosure of your protected health information to carry out treatment, payment, or health care operations. You may also limit disclosures to individuals involved with your care. The department is not required to agree to any restriction.

You have the right to be assured that your information will be kept confidential. The

Department of Health may mail or call you with health care appointment reminders. We will make contact with you in the manner and at the address or phone number you select. You may be asked to put your request in writing. If you are responsible to pay for services, you may provide an address other than your residence where you can receive mail and where we may contact you. You have the right to inspect and receive a copy of your protected health information. Your inspection of information will be supervised at an appointed time and place. You may be denied access as specified by law. If access is denied, you have the right to request a review by a licensed health care professional who was not involved in the decision to deny access. This licensed health care professional will be designated by the department. You have the right to correct your protected health information. Your request to correct your protected health information must be in writing and provide a reason to support your requested correction. The Department of Health may deny your request, in whole or part, if it finds the protected health information:

- £ Was not created by the department,
- £ Is not protected health information,
- £ Is by law not available for your inspection, or
- £ Is accurate and complete. If your correction is accepted, the department will make the correction and tell you and others who need to know about the correction. If your request is denied, you may send a letter detailing the reason you disagree with the decision. The department will respond to your letter in writing. You also may file a complaint, as described below in the section titled Complaints. You have the right to receive a summary of certain disclosures the Department of Health may have made of your protected health information. This summary does **not** include:
- £ Disclosures made to you.
- £ Disclosures to individuals involved with your care.
- £ Disclosures authorized by you.
- £ Disclosures made to carry out treatment, payment, and health care operations.
- £ Disclosures for public health.
- £ Disclosures for health professional regulatory purposes.
- £ Disclosures to report abuse of children, adults, or disabled.
- £ Disclosures prior to April 14, 2003. This summary does include disclosures made for:
- £Purposes of research, other than those you authorized in writing.
- £ Responses to court orders, subpoenas, or warrants. You may request a summary for not more than a 6-year period from the date of your request. If you received this Notice of Privacy Practices electronically, you have the right to a paper copy upon request.

For Further Information

Requests for further information about the matters covered by this notice may be directed to the person who gave you the notice, to the director or administrator of the Department of Health facility where you received the notice, or to the Department of Health, Inspector General at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN A03/ Tallahassee, FL 32399-1704/ telephone 850-245-4141.

Complaints

If you believe your privacy rights have been violated, you may file a complaint with the: Department of Health's Inspector General at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN A03/ Tallahassee, FL 32399-1704/ telephone 850-245-4141 and with the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 200 Independence Avenue, S.W./ Washington, D.C. 20201/ telephone 202-619-0257 or toll free 877-696-6775. The complaint must be in writing, describe the acts or omissions that you believe violate your privacy rights, and be filed within 180 days of when you knew or should have known that the act or omission occurred. The Department of Health will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint.

This Notice of Privacy Practices is effective beginning April 14, 2003 and shall be in effect until a new Notice of Privacy Practices is approved and posted.

References

"Standards for the Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information; Final Rule." 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164. *Federal Register*, Vol. 65, No. 250 (December 28, 2000).

"Standards for the Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information; Final Rule." 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164. *Federal Register*, Vol. 67, No. 157

(August 14, 2002).

Florida Department of Health Office of the Inspector General

4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN A-03 Tallahassee FL 32399-1704

DH 150-741, 4/03; Stock Number: 5730-741-0150-0

In compliance with Florida Statute 119.071(5), this document serves to notify you of the purpose for the collection of your social security number by the Taylor County School District. The Taylor County School District collects and uses your social security number only if specifically authorized by law to do so or when it is imperative for the performance of its duties and responsibilities as prescribed by law. Specifically, the Taylor County School District collects your social security number for the following purposes: employment application, criminal history check (FDLE, FBI, local law enforcement agencies), Department of Homeland Security Federal 1-9 form, Federal W4, W2, 1099 and other IRS documents, Federal Social Security taxes (FICA), unemployment reports (Florida Department of Revenue), Florida Retirement System documents and reports, Workers' Compensation documents and reports, Direct Deposit documents, authorizations and other documents for optional retirement programs such as 403(b) and FICA Alternative Programs, documents and reports related to Group benefits such as health, dental and life insurances, documents and reports related to supplemental deductions, documents and reports for the Florida Department of Education, Bureau of Educator Certification, Florida Department of Education, Office of Professional Practices Services and other FL-Doe departments as required, documents and reports for the Florida Department of Children and Families, Florida Department of Labor, Florida Department of Revenue and other local, state and federal agencies as required, other purposes specifically required or authorized by local, state or federal law. For additional information, please refer to page 6 of the Employee Information Handbook or to School Board Policy 7.381.

Taylor Accelerated School

CODE OF STUDENT CONDUCT 2020 - 21

The Attendance Policies, Dress Code, Discipline Matrix and Code of Conduct for students of Taylor Accelerated School (TAS) are the same as the students' home school. Except as noted.

Requirements

All students, and parents or guardians of students attending the Taylor Accelerated School, must meet with the school administration and sign a Contract for Success, before attending school.

Students may be assigned to TAS as a result of underperformance in maintaining academic progress in the student's original school. Placement is based on decisions of school administrators, guidance counselors and Exceptional Student Educators (as appropriate). Students and parents are expected and encouraged to be actively involved in the academic planning. Once a student has completed coursework that places them current with their peer age group, the student is able to return to their original school. Students receiving educational services at TAS are encouraged to participate in all appropriate academic and extra-curricular programs offered in the Taylor County School District.

Students may also be placed at TAS as a result of discipline referrals, if the student's currently assigned school has exhausted its means to correct the inappropriate behavior. Each student that attends TAS as a result of a discipline infraction will be required to complete the day's assignments from the referring school and will remain assigned to TAS until the required and subsequent classwork is completed. Students that receive discipline referrals that would result in out of school suspensions may complete their suspension at TAS. Students that complete their suspension at TAS are entitled to scores commensurate with their assignments completion. Failure to successfully complete assignments will result in the suspension being served off campus in Out of School Suspension (OSS) at home.

While every effort is extended to have students serve Discipline Referrals at TAS, circumstances may arise where it is in the best interest of school order to begin immediate suspension of the student off campus.

Rules and Regulations

A student is expected to be at school and in class on time and prepared to learn every day. A student is considered tardy to class if they are not in class when the bell rings and absent from class if the student misses more than 15 minutes of instruction from a class.

NO STUDENT ASSIGNED TO TAS AS A RESULT OF DISCIPLINE REFERALLS SHALL BE AUTHORIZED TO DRIVE TO SCHOOL, UNLESS THE STUDENT ATTENDS BBTC AND DISTRICT TRANSPORTATION IS NOT AVAILABLE. ALL STUDENTS SHALL RIDE A DISTRICT SCHOOL BUS OR BE DROPPED OFF/PICKED UP BY THE STUDENTS PARENT.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS/ELECTRONIC DEVICES

- 1. Cell phones cannot be possessed or used at the Taylor Accelerated School. Cells phones will be collected upon arrival and returned at the end of the school day. If a student is caught with a cell phone in their possession during the school day, the TAS Discipline matrix will be followed and the cellular device will be confiscated and will have to be picked up by a parent or guardian. Hiding a cell phone or not turning over a cell phone to TAS administration will be considered "providing false information to a school board employee" and will be a Level 2 referral and will result in 3 days of Out of School Suspension on the first offense.
- 2. <u>Student may use wireless communication or electronic devices after they are dismissed and leave campus, or during school approved Celebrations or "Bonus Time".</u>
- 3. The School Board is not responsible under any circumstances for the loss, destruction, damage

and/or theft of wireless communication or electronic devices or any communication bill associated with the authorized or unauthorized use of the wireless communication devices. You are responsible for locating any lost or stolen items.

The misuse of a wireless communication or electronic device may result in the imposition of disciplinary action by the school and/or criminal penalties if the device is used in a criminal act.

Food Delivery

No food can be delivered to TAS for students unless it is earned and prior approval is given by TAS Administration.

Profanity

There will be no form of profanity. Profanity is the use of profane or obscene language; Vulgar comments including written notes (student to student)

Security

A School Resource Officer (SRO) will be available to schools at all times through the local law enforcement agency. The school may also be secured with cameras in and outside the classrooms as well as on school buses.

For safety reasons, no wandering in classrooms or around the campus will be allowed. Students will remain in their assigned area and in their seats. Examples of violations are, but not limited to:

Unauthorized Area/Activities

- 1. Halls without a pass
- 2. Leaving campus without permission. Campus is defined by inside the secure area of the school (the parking lot is considered off campus)
- 3. Teacher's lounge/resource center
- 4. Restrooms without a pass
- 5. Computer without permission (looking at and/or downloading programs)
- 6. Teachers computers
- 7. Any unsupervised area of the campus without permission.

Search and Seizure

The school administration has the right to "wand" students, search lockers, desks, book bags, cars, and other storage facilities. Random searches may occur at any time there is reasonable suspicion of illegal activity. Searches will be done with at least one adult witness. **Students may be searched upon entrance to the school.** There will not be a strip search.

Jackets/coats/sweaters/shoes will be removed and searched and pockets will be emptied. Shoes and socks may also be removed and searched. Students are held accountable for whatever is found in their possession or in their property. K-9 units may be involved in searches without the presence of students in the room. Students are not allowed to have weapons, alcohol, tobacco products, lighters, drugs/drug paraphernalia, beepers, radios/Walkman, headphone sets, toys, etc. Items that are found which are prohibited by the School Board Code of Conduct will be confiscated. Students who are found with weapons or controlled substances shall be arrested and/or subject to expulsion from school. If a student refuses to cooperate with the search and seizure procedures, the student will be arrested for disruption of school function and a discipline referral will be generated for a major offense.

Student Performance and Effort Students who attend Taylor Accelerated School are expected to attend school and apply themselves academically. If a student is refusing to perform or refusing to work at his/her scheduled pace, a Parent Conference will be scheduled and a possible change of academic setting may be recommended.

Taylor County School District (TAS) DRESS CODE

DRESS CODE AND GROOMING

A student's apparel and grooming shall be the responsibility of the individual student and his or her Parents/guardians. Each student is expected to dress appropriately in such a manner that is respectful to self and others. Dress and grooming shall be clean, healthy and safe, and shall not be permitted to disrupt the teaching and learning environment. Items that when worn together are usually indicative of gang memberships or apparel that contains a message that is obscene or promotes illegal activities, drugs, discrimination, alcohol, or tobacco products shall not be permitted on school grounds or at school sponsored functions.

Taylor County schools is designed to promote safety and good hygiene as well as allow students the convenience of dressing comfortably while at school. Encouraging students to dress appropriately for school will prepare them to be productive members of society.

This is not an all-inclusive list. Administrative discretion will apply in some cases.

Dress Code: ALL

Masks: Student masks in grades 6-12 can be patterned or printed but cannot have words, symbols, lettering, or in any way be out of compliance with TCSD approved dress code. Bandanas may not be used as masks.

NO BOOK BAGS or BOOK "TRAPPERS" WILL BE ALLOWED. Small purses, 5" x 8", will be allowed. A spiral notebook and a pencil or pen is permissible.

ACCESSORIES

- 1. Hair should be neat and well-groomed and without foreign objects such as, hair combs and hair picks, or other items that could be used as or used to hide weapons or drug paraphernalia.
- 2. No facial jewelry except eyeglasses. (Example: no lip, tongue, nose, or eyebrow jewelry.)
- 3. No dental grills, unless surgically attached by a dentist.

Shoes: Shoes must be worn at all times and conform to the safety requirements of any activity in which the student will take part. Open-toed and backless slides are acceptable if they are sturdy and fit securely. Bedroom shoes or slippers are not permitted.

Accessories and Jewelry: Accessories and jewelry must not be sexually suggestive or feature crude or vulgar commercial lettering, printing, or drawings which would be offensive or insensitive. They may

not depict drugs, tobacco, alcohol, or be indicative of gang membership. Accessories and jewelry must not be capable of causing physical harm (nose; lip; eyebrow; tongue rings are not permitted).

Hats and Sunglasses: Both male and female head coverings and sunglasses are not permitted. This includes but is not limited to hats, beanies, hoods, bandanas, do-rags and caps worn during the school day. (During outside school activities, hats and sunglasses are permitted for sun protection).

- *Any hat, sunglasses, beanie, hood, bandana, do-rag or cap will be confiscated if worn on campus and must be picked up by a parent or guardian.
- *Any item worn or displayed that causes a disruption will not be permitted.

Females:

- **1. Shorts, Skirts, Skorts and Dresses**: Clothing should be at least as long as the middle finger with arms extended by the side, this also includes slits and holes. Dresses and skirts should be loose fitting.
 - a. No BodyCon, formfitting or body hugging dresses are allowed.
 - b. Dresses must be no higher than 2 inches above the knee
 - c. Or Dresses/tops can be worn with leggings, but the top MUST come to the middle finger with arms extended by the side.
- **2. Shirts: Shirts, tops, jackets, dresses or blouses** should cover all aspects of the bosom, chest, back, shoulder, and sides.
 - a. Cleavage should not be visible.
 - b. Crop tops, tank tops, tube tops, halters, or spaghetti straps are not permitted as a primary top.
 - c. Sheer materials, extremely tight clothing, beachwear, sleepwear/pajamas/bedroom clothes are not permitted.
 - d. Undergarments should not be visible at any time.
- **3.** Pants should fit appropriately, without sagging, and hide all undergarments (e.g. underwear, boxers, and shorts). Any pants with holes or slits should come no higher than the middle finger with arms extended by the side. No yoga pants/tights/form fitting pants are allowed unless the top (shirt) is at least as long as the middle finger with arms extended by the side. Yoga pants/ tights/form fitting pants should not be see-through or sheer.

MALE:

1. Pants

- a. Shirts will be tucked in the pants and a belt will be worn, keeping the pants above the hips.
- b. Any pants with holes or slits that are higher than 2 inches from the knee (when standing) will be allowed as long as no skin is visible through the hole or slit.
- **2.Shorts:** shorts should be at least as long as the middle finger with arms extended by the side, this also includes holes.
- **3.Shirts:** Shirts, tops, jackets, should cover all aspects of the chest, back and sides.
 - a. Tank tops are not permitted as a primary top.
 - b. Sheer materials, extremely tight clothing, beachwear, sleepwear/pajamas/bedroom clothes not permitted.
 - *See special disciplinary actions below. Exceptions may be made by administration for special school activities or if the student is a member of a legally recognized religious organization requiring head covering or if there is a legitimate medical necessity.
 - *Any administrator or designee shall make the determination concerning questions regarding the appropriateness of dress for school and for school sponsored functions.

available, parents will be contacted to bring a change of clothing and the discipline matrix will be followed. If a parent cannot bring appropriate clothing the student will sit in isolation for the remainder of the day to do their work and the discipline matrix will be followed.

Discipline for Failure to Follow the Dress Code Policy SB 228- Code of Student Conduct amends F.S. 1006.07to include disciplinary action to any student who violates the dress code policy.

Substance Abuse

Maintaining a drug free/non-violent environment is one of the main goals of this school. TAS staff believes that a student that feels safe and has a clear mind has a good chance of succeeding. The use of illicit drugs and the unlawful possession and use of illicit drugs and the unlawful possession and use of alcohol is wrongful and harmful. No alcoholic beverages can be brought onto school grounds for consumption before the school day, during the school day or for later consumption.

TAYLOR ACCELERATED SCHOOL BEHAVIOR GUIDELINES CLASSROOM DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE AND STEPS

The TAS Discipline Plan groups violations into four levels--minor, intermediate, major, and severe. Each classification is followed by a disciplinary procedure which is to be implemented by the faculty, staff, and administration. The offenses listed are not all inclusive and a student committing an act of misconduct not listed will, nevertheless, be subject to the discretionary authority of the principal or his designee.

TAS Campus Behavior Referral Levels Discipline Matrix

Level 1 Level 2		Level 3	Level 4

-Cafeteria
misconduct
-Cheating on
test
-Dress code
violation
-Tardy to
school/class
-Eat/Drink/Gum
-Lack of
cooperation,
does not want to
complete
assignments or
classwork,
sleeping in class,
not bringing
materials
-Possessing
inappropriate
items
-Field Trip
misconduct
-Use of profane
or obscene
language
-Public display
of affection
-Driving or
parking without
sticker, parking

-Disorderly Conduct
-Disrespect
-Disruptive behavior
-Gestures and name
calling to other
students
-Gambling or
unauthorized sales
-Disobedient/ non-
compliant
-Loitering on campus
-Leaving class without
permission (returning
to class)
-Driver unauthorized to
drive on campus
-Skipping class, in hall
without permission,
wandering the halls
-Electronic device
misuse
-Possession/ use of
unauthorized
medication, OTC
-Behavior Putting
Safety at Risk
(Horseplay)
-Pushing; shoving; slap-
boxing
-Threat or Intimidation

-Insubordination

-Disruption of school	-Sa
function	-A
-Hazing	-B
-Inciting/ Instigating	stı
a fight	an
-Tampering with	-Fi
emergency	-A
equipment	-B
-Possession of	-B
tobacco, matches,	int
lighters, electronic	-N
smoking products.	-P
-Possessing using or	inf
under the influence	-Sa
of alcohol	со
-Bullying/	-E:
Harassment	-H
-Pulling fire alarm	se
-Careless act causing	re
injury	int
-Threatening to	-In
disrupt school	ha
-Gross disrespect/	- N
misbehavior towards	ca
staff	pe
-Open display gang	a١
related	ma
-Disruption of school	-R
sponsored activity	-St
after school hours	ste
	sto

-Sale or distribution of alcohol
-Arson
-Battery, when one or more
student(s) physically attacks
another student
-Fighting
-Assault on school staff
-Bomb threat
-Breaking and entering/Burglary
into a school or property
-Major campus disruption
-Possession, use or under the
influence of drugs
-Sale or distribution of drugs or
controlled substances
-Extortion/Coercion/Blackmail
-Homicide, Kidnapping, other
serious, harmful activities
resulting in law enforcement
intervention
-Intimidating, threatening,
harassment of school staff
- Major campus disruption
causing a large number of
people to gather and behave in
a violent or uncontrollable
manner
-Robbery
-Stealing or accessory to
stealing, buying and/or selling
stolen property

Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Level 4
in unauthorized areaInappropriate searches (not vulgar) - Unauthorized web/games	-Throwing, propelling objects - Minor damage - Accidental Damage -Improper or careless driving -Behavior Putting Safety at Risk with cause or intent to injure -Defiance of authority -Leaving class without permission (not returning to class) -Failure to comply with ISS expectations -Providing false information to a school board employee -Verbal Altercation - Disrespecting staff/students through the use of technology - Possession of hacking tool - Filter Avoidance - Graphic/vulgar search - Search containing threat of violence - Minor Network disruption (classroom)	-Leaving campus without permission -Possession or use of fireworks -Intimidation, threatening, harassment of other students -Intentionally making false accusations -Sexual harassment -Sexual misconduct; indecent proposition or contact or touching, pornographic materials, indecent exposure -Stealing or accessory to theft (less than \$300) -Entering or remaining in school property without permission -vandalism -possession of pocketknife with less than 2 ½ inch blade - Sexting - Network security compromise - Major Damage (non-accidental) - Altering information	(over \$300) -Sexual contact, including intercourse, without force or threat of force -Sexual offense, Sexual Battery, Indecent exposure -Threatening to use or bring weapon -Possession or discharge of explosive device -Possession of weapons or firearms, lookalikes, imitation or dangerous objects which can be used to do bodily harm (all knives over 2 ½ inches) - Severe Network disruption -Using electronic device/network to steal

FIELD TRIPS

Classes may be scheduled to take field trips. Only students who demonstrate appropriate behavior prior to the trip will be allowed to attend. Policies for each grade level are as follows: A student can earn up to 2 minor/ intermediate offense referrals (please refer to Level 1 and 2 offenses above for a list of minor/ intermediate offenses) and still be allowed to go on field trips. If a student earns a 3rd minor offense referral then they are ineligible. A student can earn 1 major offense referral (please refer to above list for Level 3 offenses) and still be eligible to attend a field trip. If a student earns a 2nd major referral, they are then ineligible for field trips. Any student earning a Level 4 Offense referrals will not be eligible to attend field trip.

<u>Level</u>	1st	<mark>2nd</mark>	<mark>3rd</mark>	4th	<mark>5th</mark>	Repeated
1	Parent Contact	<mark>Parent</mark>	Parent Contact; 3	<mark>Parent</mark>	<mark>Parent</mark>	<mark>Parent</mark>
	<mark>Warning</mark>	Contact, 1.5	<mark>hours of</mark>	Contact; 1	Contact; 3	contact; 5
		<mark>hours of</mark>	<mark>restorative</mark>	day OSS	days OSS	days OSS/
		<mark>restorative</mark>	<mark>practice</mark>			Expulsion
		<mark>practice</mark>				
<mark>2</mark>	Parent Contact	<mark>Parent</mark>	Parent Contact; 1	<mark>Parent</mark>	<mark>Parent</mark>	<mark>Parent</mark>
	Warning	Contact, 3	day OSS	Contact; 3	Contact; 5	contact; 10
		<mark>hours of</mark>		days OSS	days OSS	days OSS/
		<mark>restorative</mark>				Expulsion
		<mark>practice</mark>				
<mark>3</mark>	Parent Contact, 5	<mark>Parent</mark>	Parent contact;			
	days OSS	Contact, 10	<mark>Immediate 10</mark>			
		days OSS	days OSS and			
			recommendation			
			to School board			
			for expulsion			
<mark>4</mark>	Parent contact;					
	<mark>Immediate 10</mark>					
	days OSS and					
	recommendation					
	to School board					
	for expulsion					

Principals/ Assistant principals/ Deans have the authority to adjust punishment due to the evaluation of the circumstances surrounding the case or incident. A good faith effort to contact Parent or guardian will be made during the referral process.

Discipline for students with disabilities will be handled on an individual basis. The disciplinary decisions belong to the principal or his designee to affect all situations as afforded by law. Due to privacy and confidentiality, parents may NOT view video evidence of inappropriate behavior(s).

If any student reaches a total of 25 days of OSS, he/she will be referred to the Taylor County School Board for expulsion.

Examples of Restorative Practice but not limited to:

- Breakfast/Lunch Detention with Essay
- Time Out
- Work Detail
- Loss of Elective
- Loss of Computer
- Conflict Mediation

- Behavior Reflection
- Guidance Conference
- Apology Letter
- Behavior Essay
- Restore/repair property damage

OSS- Out of School Suspension *OSS students will serve their consequences at HOME.

Code of Ethics of the Education Profession in Florida.

- 1. The educator values the worth and dignity of every person, the pursuit of truth, devotion to excellence, acquisition of knowledge, and the nurture of democratic citizenship. Essential to the achievement of these standards are the freedom to learn and to teach and the guarantee of equal opportunity for all.
- 2. The educator's primary professional concern will always be for the student and for the development of the student's potential. The educator will therefore strive for professional growth and will seek to exercise the best professional judgment and integrity.
- 3. Aware of the importance of maintaining the respect and confidence of one's colleagues, of students, of parents, and of other members of the community, the educator strives to achieve and sustain the highest degree of ethical conduct.

Principles of Professional Conduct for the Education Profession in Florida

- 1. The following disciplinary rule shall constitute the Principles of Professional Conduct for the Education Profession in Florida.
- 2. Violation of any of these principles shall subject the individual to revocation or suspension of the individual educator's certificate, or the other penalties as provided by law.
- 3. Obligation to the student requires that the individual:
 - a. Shall make reasonable effort to protect the student from conditions harmful to learning and/or to the student's mental and/or physical health and/or safety.
 - **b.** Shall not unreasonably restrain a student from independent action in pursuit of learning.
 - **c.** Shall not unreasonably deny a student access to diverse points of view.
 - **d.** Shall not intentionally suppress or distort subject matter relevant to a student's academic program.
 - **e.** Shall not intentionally expose a student to unnecessary embarrassment or disparagement.
 - f. Shall not intentionally violate or deny a student's legal rights.
 - g. Shall not harass or discriminate against any student on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national or ethnic origin, political beliefs, marital status, handicapping condition, sexual orientation, or social and family background and shall make reasonable effort to assure that each student is protected from harassment or discrimination.
 - h. Shall not exploit a relationship with a student for personal gain or advantage.
 - i. Shall keep in confidence personally identifiable information obtained in the course of professional service, unless disclosure serves professional purposes or is required by law
- **4.** Obligation to the public requires that the individual:
 - a. Shall take reasonable precautions to distinguish between personal views and those of any educational institution or organization with which the individual is affiliated.
 - **b.** Shall not intentionally distort or misrepresent facts concerning an educational matter in direct or indirect public expression.
 - **c.** Shall not use institutional privileges for personal gain or advantage.

- d. Shall accept no gratuity, gift, or favor that might influence professional judgment.
- e. Shall offer no gratuity, gift, or favor to obtain special advantages.
- **5.** Obligation to the profession of education requires that the individual:
 - a. Shall maintain honesty in all professional dealings.
 - b. Shall not on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, national or ethnic origin, political beliefs, marital status, handicapping condition if otherwise qualified, or social and family background deny to a colleague professional benefits or advantages or participation in any professional organization.
 - **c.** Shall not interfere with a colleague's exercise of political or civil rights and responsibilities.
 - d. Shall not engage in harassment or discriminatory conduct which unreasonably interferes with an individual's performance of professional or work responsibilities or with the orderly processes of education or which creates a hostile, intimidating, abusive, offensive, or oppressive environment; and, further, shall make reasonable effort to assure that each individual is protected from such harassment or discrimination.
 - e. Shall not make malicious or intentionally false statements about a colleague.
 - f. Shall not use coercive means or promise special treatment to influence professional judgments of colleagues.
 - g. Shall not misrepresent one's own professional qualifications.
 - h. Shall not submit fraudulent information on any document in connection with professional activities.
 - i. Shall not make any fraudulent statement or fail to disclose a material fact in one's own or another's application for a professional position.
 - j. Shall not withhold information regarding a position from an applicant or misrepresent an assignment or conditions of employment.
 - k. Shall provide, upon the request of the certificated individual, a written statement of specific reason for recommendations that lead to the denial of increments, significant changes in employment, or termination of employment.
 - l. Shall not assist entry into or continuance in the profession of any person known to be unqualified in accordance with these Principles of Professional Conduct for the Education Profession in Florida and other applicable Florida Statutes and State Board of Education Rules.
 - m. Shall self-report within forty-eight (48) hours to appropriate authorities (as determined by district) any arrests/charges involving the abuse of a child or the sale and/or possession of a controlled substance. Such notice shall not be considered an admission of guilt nor shall such notice be admissible for any purpose in any proceeding, civil or criminal, administrative or judicial, investigatory or adjudicatory. In addition, shall self-report any conviction, finding of guilt, withholding of adjudication, commitment to a pretrial diversion program, or entering of a plea of guilty or Nolo Contendre for any criminal offense other than a minor traffic violation within forty-eight (48) hours after the final judgment. When handling sealed and expunged records disclosed under this rule, school districts shall comply with the confidentiality provisions of Sections 943.0585(4)(c) and 943.059(4)(c), Florida Statutes.

- n. Shall report to appropriate authorities any known allegation of a violation of the Florida School Code or State Board of Education Rules as defined in Section 1012.795(1), Florida Statutes.
- **o.** Shall seek no reprisal against any individual who has reported any allegation of a violation of the Florida School Code or State Board of Education Rules as defined in Section1012.795(1), Florida Statutes.
- p. Shall comply with the conditions of an order of the Education Practices Commission.
- **q.** Shall, as the supervising administrator, cooperate with the Education Practices Commission in monitoring the probation of a subordinate.